
 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

 
 

Cabinet Members' 
Decisions 

 
 

made December 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

17 February 2017 
 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Cabinet Members' Decisions 
 

made December 2016 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   CPZ T, H AND D 
 

1 - 14 

2.   DELIVERING THE SCHOOLS CAPITAL PROGRAMME - 
APPOINTMENT OF CONTRACTOR - WINDOWS REPLACEMENT 
PHASE 1  

15 - 74 

 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

CABINET MEMBER DECISION 

 

 
19/12/2016 

 

CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES T, H AND D REVIEW JUNE 2016 
 

Report of Councillor Harcourt, Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and 
Resident Services 
 

Open Report 

Classification: For decision  
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: Fulham Reach and North End   
 

Accountable Director: Mahmood Siddiqi, Director Transport and Highways 
 

Report Author:  
Carl Gellard 
Project Engineer 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3522 
E-mail: carl.gellard@lbhf.gov.uk 

AUTHORISED BY: ....................................... ...................................................... 
 
…Councillor Wesley Harcourt………. 

 

.DATE: ……19 December 2016.. 
 

1



2 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1. This report details the results of a parking review and consultation carried out in June 2016 and 
provides a recommendation based on feedback received from residents and businesses of 
Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ) T, H and D. This consultation was held in response to feedback 
from residents and ward members regarding the reported issues of parking stress, particularly at 
weekends and on Chelsea and Fulham match days. 
 

1.2. A consultation and questionnaire (Appendix 1) was distributed to 14,384 properties across the 
three zones and a total of 1,626 responses were received which represents an overall response 
rate of 11.3%.  

 
1.3. All three zones opted to retain their existing controlled hours, however a total of 226 comments 

were received in relation to the effects of match day commuter parking, particularly in streets 
located within CPZ’s T and D. (Appendices 2-4, provides a street by street breakdown of 
results).    

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. To retain the existing controlled hours of Monday - Friday, 9am – 5pm in CPZ’s T, H and D. To 
keep the current maximum stay period set at 8 hours for pay and  display customers. 
 

2.2. Carry out a parking beat survey in all streets of CPZ T to establish the effects of weekend 
commuter parking demand and Fulham FC match day commuter parking.  

 

2.3. Consult CPZ D on an option to introduce “Event Day” restrictions which will enable the council to 
vary the controlled hours through variable messaging signage (VMS) on a Chelsea match day or 
when there is an event at the Queens Club (Such as the AEGON Tennis Championships which 
are held for one week in June each year).  

 

2.4. Before carrying out further consultation in CPZ T or D it is recommended that we await feedback 
and results from a forthcoming consultation and review of CPZ’s F and S which is scheduled for 
2017/18.  
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. As part of the of the duty of the Local Highway Authority as defined under the Highways Act 
1980 and the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, the maintenance of the local highway network 
and ensuring the movement of the network are essential responsibilities. The design and 
management of parking spaces is an essential part of the highway authorities’ duties in ensuring 
the smooth flow of the network. As such ensuring a suitable programme which looks to maintain 
and improve the highway is essential. 
 

4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

4.1. Controlled parking zones T, H and D are located within the Fulham Reach and North End wards 
close to Hammersmith Town Centre. The area is bound by the A4 Talgarth Road in the north, 
the borough boundary with the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea in the east and 
parallel to the River Thames in the west as per the map in Fig 1. 
 

4.2. All three CPZ’s currently operate between 9am – 5pm, Monday to Friday. During this period all 
parking bays are controlled and users must either display a valid Resident/Business permit, or 
Pay & Display for a maximum period of 8 hours. 

2



3 
 

 
 

4.3. At present, all zones have the SMART Visitor Permit which offers a discounted rate of parking 
for resident’s visitors. This permit system works like an Oyster card, whereby users can top up 
their cards and then activate them and display them in the visitor’s vehicle when required. The 
Council is in the process of replacing this system with a new phone based system which will 
offer a pay as you go service instead, avoiding the need to keep a balance on the permit. 
 

4.4. The three CPZ’s have remained operating Monday – Friday, 9am – 5pm since they were 
introduced in the early 90’s. This is despite bordering CPZ’s which were subsequently 
introduced in the late 90’s and are controlled on weekends. This is believed to be a factor in 
increased weekend parking stress which has been reported over the years. 
  

4.5. CPZ ‘s T, H and D were last consulted in 2010 as part of a wider parking review involving 
around 54,000 properties across all 12 parking zones south of the A4 Talgarth Road. As part of 
this consultation, various options were provided including changing the general controlled hours 
and days of the week that each zone was in operation as well as an option to introduce special 
controls to operate on match days following the pilot of a scheme in zones X and Y (Fulham 
FC). At the time there was no consensus for any change to the current restrictions so it was 
therefore decided to keep the current controlled hours. 

 
5. CONSULTATION  

5.1. A review and consultation of CPZ T, H and D began on the 9 May 2016  for a 4 week period, 
closing on the 6 June 2016. Postal responses were accepted until the 10 June 2016 to allow for 
courier delays. The consultation was also offered online and was live for the same period. All 
registered postal addresses in CPZ T, H and D were sent a consultation leaflet and 
questionnaire (Appendix 1) which included a pre-paid return envelope. 

5.2. 14,384 leaflet and questionnaires were distributed and the consultation received a total of 1,626 
responses from all zones. This represents an overall response rate of 11.3%. The table below 
provides a breakdown of responses received from each per zone: 

CPZ Distributed  Received by post Received online Received total Response rate 

T 2,162 296 15 311 14.38% 

H 4,786 459 31 490 10.23% 

D 7,436 754 71 825 11.09% 

Total 14,384 1,509 117 1,626 11.30% 

Fig 1 – Controlled Parking Zones T, H and D (Consultation Area) 

3



4 
 

5.3. Feedback from the consultation indicated that the majority of respondents from across all three 
zones CPZ’s broadly supported the controlled hours which are currently in operation. It is 
therefore recommended that they are retained. The table below details the overall results of all 
three CPZ’s: 
 

CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES T 

Restriction Keep Existing Restriction Change Exiting Restriction 

Monday – Friday 74.9% 25.1% 

9am – 5pm 72.3% 27.7% 

8 hours maximum stay (P&D) 70.7% 29.3% 

CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES H 

Restriction Keep Existing Restriction Change Exiting Restriction 

Monday – Friday 79.1% 20.9% 

9am – 5pm 72.0% 28.0% 

8 hours maximum stay (P&D) 68.9% 31.1% 

CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES D 

Restriction Keep Existing Restriction Change Exiting Restriction 

Monday – Friday 76.2% 23.8% 

9am – 5pm 69.9% 30.1% 

8 hours maximum stay (P&D) 59.3% 40.7% 

 

Appendix 5 and 6 provides a spatial representation of the preferred options across all three 
CPZ’s. There was no consistent pattern of streets in a particular area that favoured a particular 
option which would warrant the recommendation of altering the current controls or introducing  
sub-zone controls in a particular street or area.  

 
5.4. As part of the consultation, question 7 gave respondents the opportunity to specify if they 

wanted to see any other controls operating in their CPZ. The consultation received 226 
comments in relation to the effects of match day commuter parking. The majority of requests for 
special match day controls were from Zone T which is the smallest of the CPZ’s, however a 
higher volume of requests for match day controls was received from a collection of streets in the 
southern part of CPZ D. The table below provides a breakdown of requests from each CPZ. 
 

 
Zone D 

 
5.5. As part of a forthcoming parking consultation scheduled in the 2017/18 parking projects 

programme, match day parking controls may be offered to CPZ F and S because there is 
currently a pending planning application for a proposed increase in stadium capacity at Stamford 
Bridge which may lead to increased commuter activity across Fulham.  
 

5.6. Subject to the outcome of the CPZ F and S consultation, should match day restrictions be 
introduced, parking stress is likely to increase in the southern section of Zone D as highlighted 
on the map below Fig 2.  A higher proportion of requests for match day controls was received 
from this area compared to the rest of CPZ D. The table in Fig 3 details the number of requests 
received from each street in the southern section.  

 
 

CPZ Total responses received Respondents requesting 
Match Day controls 

Zone T 311 105 (33.8%) 

Zone H 490 29 (5.9%) 

Zone D 825 92 (11.5%) 

TOTAL 1,626 226 (13.9%) 

4



5 
 

Fig 2 

 

 
 

Fig 3 

 
 

5.7. It is recommended that if match day controls are introduced in neighbouring CPZ F & S, a 
proposal for “Event Day” restrictions to include all streets of Zone D should be considered and 
offered as part of a consultation to mitigate the risk of displaced parking during Chelsea FC and 
Queens Club fixtures and events.  

ZONE T 
 

5.8. The consultation received a higher volume of requests for match day controls from CPZ T in 
proportion to requests received from CPZ H & D, it is recommended that parking stress surveys 
are carried out in all streets of CPZ T (Fig 4) during two fixtures, including a weekday evening 
and weekend to ascertain the effects of Fulham FC match day commuter parking. The table in 
Fig 5 shows a breakdown of requests for match day controls from CPZ T on a street by street 
basis  
 

5.9. Parking beat surveys should be carried out 
over the same period on a non-match day and 
based on our findings, we may recommend to 
re-consult CPZ T with a specific option to 
introduce match day controls like those which 
currently operate in the adjacent X and Y 
zones. It is recommended that these surveys 
and a potential a re-consultation of CPZ T is 
carried out as part of the 2017/18 parking 
projects programme.  
 
 

 

Fig 4 - Zone T: Parking beat survey area 

Zone D Boundary 
 
 

Zone F Boundary  
 
 

Sub section of  
Zone D 

(Higher number of 
requests for match 

day controls) 

5



6 
 

Fig 5 

 
 
MAXIMUM STAY PERIOD (PAY AND DISPLAY) 

 
5.10. Question 6 of the consultation gave respondents the option of reducing the maximum stay 

period for pay and display customers. The majority of respondents in CPZ’s T, H & D wanted to 
keep the 8-hour maximum stay period which runs for the duration of the controlled hours, 
however we received a higher volume of requests from certain streets where a majority of 
residents wanted to reduce the maximum stay period: 

 

 

 
 

6



7 
 

6. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1. The overall effects of any future proposal as a result of recommendations in this report will be 
considered before members make a final decision including the need to give due regard to the 
needs identified in the public sector equality duty in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (“the 
2010 Act”). 
 

6.2. Implications completed by: (Carl Gellard, Project Engineer, ext: 3522) 
 

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. Section 16 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 places an obligation on the council to ensure the 
expeditious movement of traffic on its road network. The council is required to make 
arrangements as it considers appropriate for planning and carrying out the action to be taken in 
performing this duty. 
 

7.2. The council acting in its capacity as “Highway Authority” has power to designate Controlled 
Parking Zones under section 45 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. These powers give the 
council the right to introduce or amend Traffic Management Orders affecting Controlled Parking 
Zones within the Borough. 

 
7.3. The Council has a duty to consult in relation to any new proposals affecting its CPZ in the 

Borough and publish those results accordingly. 
 

7.4. Section 149 of the 2010 Act requires the council as a decision maker to have due regard to 
achieving the following equality requirements when considering the amendment of such Orders: 

 

 To eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by the 2010 Act. 

 To advance equality of opportunity between those with a protected characteristic and 
those without. 

 To foster good relations between persons with a relevant protected characteristic, such 
as age, disability, pregnancy and maternity, race, sex and sexual orientation, religion, or 
belief. 

 
7.5. The council will need to comply with the requirements set out in the Local Authorities’ Traffic 

Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 should any changes be proposed 
which alter the current restricted hours of CPZ T, H and D. A separate Cabinet Member Decision 
report will be produced for any changes which may deviate from the recommendations 
contained within this report. 
 

7.6. The Human Rights Act 1998 (“The 1998 Act”) incorporates the European Convention on Human 
Rights and makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a 
Convention Right. The council acting as Highway Authority will have regard to its rights and 
responsibilities under the 1998 Act when considering parking policy across the borough. The 
council will have regard to: 

 

 Article 8 that everyone has the right to respect of his home and private life; and  

 Article 1 of the First Protocol that everyone is entitled to peaceful enjoyment of his 
or her possessions.  

 
7.7. Implications completed by: Horatio Chance, Deputy Team Leader, Licensing and Highways 

Solicitor, Telephone Number: 020 8753 1863. 
 

 
 

7



8 
 

8. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. The proposed parking survey in CPZ T will cost around £10,000. This will be funded through a 
Section 106 agreement related to the Fulham Reach development. Funding is allocated to traffic 
and transport related projects in the area as part of this agreement. 
 

8.2. Whilst there are no proposals to introduce any changes to the current parking controls in CPZ T, 
H and D, we will be carrying out a parking review and consultation in neighbouring CPZ F and S 
in 2017/18. If changes are made to the controlled hours of either zone, we may consult on a 
proposal to introduce an “Event Day Zone” in CPZ D. A separate Cabinet Member Decision 
report will be produced under a new project for the 2017/18 parking projects programme. 

 
8.3. Implications completed by: Carl Gellard, Project Engineer, Transportation & Highways 

Telephone Number: 020 8753 3522 and approved by: Gary Hannaway, Environment Finance, 
Telephone Number 0208 753 6071. 
 

 
9. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS  

9.1. There are no changes proposed which will bear an impact on businesses in CPZ T, H and D, 
however as discussed in item 5.10 we received a higher volume of requests for reducing the 
maximum stay period in certain streets. We will consider reducing the maximum stay or 
introducing “stop and shop” parking as part of the 2017/18 parking projects programme and will 
consult locally before introducing any changes.  

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. Controlled Parking Zones T,H & 
D Review – Consultation Results 
Analysis 

Carl Gellard Ext 3522 HTHX 6th Floor 

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 
Consultation document and questionnaire 
Appendix 2 
Zone T - Street by street analysis of results  
Appendix 3 
Zone H - Street by street analysis of results  
Appendix 4 
Zone D - Street by street analysis of results  
Appendix 5 
Spatial analysis - “Which days of the week would you like parking controls to operate in your zone?” 
Appendix 6 
Spatial analysis - “Between what times would you like the controlled hours to operate?” 
 
 

8



9 
 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

9



10 
 

Appendix 2 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



11 
 

 
Appendix 3 

 

11



12 
 

Appendix 4 

 

12



13 
 

Appendix 5 

 

13



14 
 

Appendix 6 

 

14



Document is Restricted

15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 CPZ T, H and D
	2 Delivering the Schools Capital Programme - Appointment of Contractor - Windows Replacement Phase 1
	CMD - 2016-12-16 School Windows - Appendix B


